ASSERTIONS

1. This mortgage was not originated in lawful compliance with federal statutes, regulations including, but not limited to RESPA, TILA, Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, FHA and other laws.

2. The origination and/or any sale or transfer of this account or monetary instrument, was not conducted in accordance with proper laws, statutes, and regulations.

3. The origination of this account or monetary instrument was not lawful for lack of full disclosure to all parties with an interest.

4. Principal and interest have not been properly calculated and applied to this alleged loan.  

5. Plaintiff asserts that because of the federal violation committed at the very beginning of said transaction that in fact the note/security instrument and mortgage contract was uninsurable

6. Plaintiff asserts that because of the federal violation committed at the very beginning of said transaction that in fact the note/security instrument and mortgage contract are void ab initio.

7. The principal balance has not been properly calculated, amitorized and/or accounted for. 

8. The Defendant is not the claimed holder in due course of the monetary instrument/deed of trust/asset, because of the defective mortgage and consequential dishonor of said note and therefore is not in compliance with Federal Statutes and is entitling Defendant to the benefits of payments;

9.  No external audit was conducted allowing for the identification and remedy of such violations committed by the Defendant. 
10. Defendant violated, and continues to violate the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 15 U.S.C. §1692 et al. 
11. Plaintiff is a real party in interest as evidenced by the signatures on the mortgage documents and will suffer imminent lose of property and livelihood if the court allows Defendant remedy.

12. On or about March 13, 2003 Plaintiff signed in good faith a deed of trust with Defendant. 

13. February 12th, 2008 Plaintiff became late due to economic hardship.

14.  A partial payment via online bill pay in the amount of one thousand three dollars, and twenty cents ($1003.20) was made February 12th 2008. Plaintiff spoke via telephone with Defendant’s company representative, Michelle Osborn in regard to working out a re-payment plan to become current and place Plaintiff back in honor. Where in said telephone conversation representative Michelle Osborn stated that Plaintiff, “should not have made that payment” as Defendant, “could not accept it”, Plaintiff was “already in pre-foreclosure”, and that Defendant, “could not except anything but the full amount due”.  

15. Defendant did in fact accept the amount sent by never returning that payment to Plaintiff. 
16. Plaintiff received a latter from Defendant dated March 11, 2008 in where Defendant announced Defendant’s intent to foreclose on the mortgage for the property in this cause. Exhibit (D)

17. March 25, 2008 a Qualified Written Request (QWR) was sent to Defendant by Plaintiff as evidenced by exhibit (E) 

18. April 2, 2008 Plaintiff received Acknowledgement that Defendant received the QWR and would respond by May 2, 2008. As evidence by exhibit (F).

19. On or about the same date a third party witness, Neil Switkowski received a similar letter stating the same goal of response by May 2, 2008, exhibit (G)

20. Every correspondence sent to the Plaintiff from Defendant, and/or Defendant’s Attorney from this point forward was, and is considered by the Plaintiff, and in Law to be an Erroneous Presentment, and Nonresponsive to Plaintiff’s QWR.

21. Every correspondence sent to the Plaintiff from Defendant, and/or Defendant’s Attorney from this point forward that is Erroneous, and Nonresponsive shows the defendant’s want to hide facts in this matter, and accentuates Nondisclosure.

22. Every action taken by the Defendant, and/or Defendant’s Attorney from this point forward was, and is today Predatory, Malicious, Unconscionable, Unjust, Unlawful, Illegal, and Fraudulent, as each action shows willful intent to cause harm, injury, and damage to the Plaintiff resulting in Unjust Enrichment awarded to the Defendant.

23. Every correspondence sent to the Plaintiff from Defendant, and/or Defendant’s Attorney from this point forward, and every action taken by the Defendant, and/or Defendant’s Attorney from this point forward further removes the Defendant’s standing, and/or any right to bring action, and/or to be awarded any Judgment in this matter. 

24. Plaintiff received on April 11 a letter stating that the Plaintiff’s loan modification had been approved. The re-payment offer was set to take effect on June 1, 2008 in the amount of nine hundred eighteen dollars, and zero cents ($918.00) it also extended the Plaintiff’s mortgage from April 1, 2033 to May 2, 2038. As evidence by exhibit (H)

25. May 14, Plaintiff received letter from Defendant stating Plaintiff has been named (Defendant) in an action but no case number was offered with their statement of hiring legal counsel to file a protective answer as evidence by exhibit (I)

26. May 23, 2008 Plaintiff received letter from Defendant thanking Plaintiff for a request to use the loss mitigation assistance and stating Plaintiff had agreed to a work out program with Defendant’s customer counseling department. As evidence by exhibit (J)

27. May 29, 2008 Plaintiff received letter from Defendant naming BARRETT BURKE, WILSON, CASTLE, DAFFIN, FRAPPIER, hereinafter “Defendant’s Attorney” as attorney’s regarding foreclosure proceedings on said property.  As evidence by exhibit (K)

28. June 3, 2008 Received letter form Defendant’s Attorney notice of foreclosure and an attempt to collect a debt in the amount of one hundred eleven thousand two hundred seventy nine dollars, and thirty three cents ($111,279,33).  As evidence by exhibit (L)

29. June 9, 2008 Plaintiff received NOTICE OF TRUSTEE SALE from Defendant listing “NATIONAL CITY MORTGAGE COMPANY” as the servicer. As evidence by exhibit (M)

30. Plaintiff received letter from Defendant’s Attorney dated June 11, 2008 with copies of Note and Deed of Trust as erroneous proof of the indebtedness. Defendant offered to reinstate Plaintiff’s loan if Plaintiff chose to use one of Defendant’s options.   There was no mention of Plaintiff’s request to complete the QWR as required by law.  As evidence by exhibit (N)

31. June 16, 2008 Plaintiff received a Letter from Defendant thanking Plaintiff’s for sending the financial information for review of mortgage eligibility. As evidence in exhibit (O).

32. June 29, 2008 Plaintiff drove to Dallas, Texas to deliver a non-negotiable demand to validate debt claim to Defendant’s Attorney. Said demand signed and received by Roberta Stevenson. As evidence in exhibit (P)

33. Plaintiff received letter dated July 9, 2008 from Defendant’s Attorney that Plaintiff have been previously provided with verification of the debt and that Plaintiff may forward that correspondence to Endless Fraud Detection Services for Review. Plaintiff was never provided any information regarding the QWR requested on April 2, 2008 as required by RESPA SERVICING DISCLOSURE statement signed march 13, 2003 setting the terms of compliance to RESP As evidence by exhibit (Q)

34.  July 16, 2008 Plaintiff was denied an INJUNCTION to stop foreclosure proceedings. As evidence by exhibit (R)

35. August 11, 2008 acceptance letter from Defendant for the initiation into their forbearance program. As evidence in exhibit (S)

36. March 6, 2009 received from Defendant statement of broken forbearance agreement. As evidence in exhibit (T)

37. March 23, 2009 Defendant sent letter to Plaintiff’s stating they have completed a review of their homeowner’s assistance package. Plaintiff’ never filed assistance package. As evidence in exhibit (U)

38. March 24, 2009 Defendant sent letter to Plaintiff expressing Defendant’s intent to foreclose. As evidence by exhibit (V)

39. March 25, 2009 Defendant’s Attorney sent notice of foreclosure with sale date of May 5, 2009. As evidence by exhibit (W)

40. April 17, 2009 Plaintiff filed a request for a Temporary Restraining Order Pursuant to Irreparable Injury.  As evidence by exhibit (X)

41. April 22, 2009 received letter from Defendant’s Attorney with a copy of the Deed of Trust as erroneous proof of indebtedness. As evidence by exhibit (Y)

42. April 24, 2009 received a letter from Defendant stating they made note to allow Lynette Rhodes CFE, access to the account. As evidence by exhibit (Z)

43. April 24, 2009 received letter from Defendant requesting our signature to release information to Lynette Rhodes. As evidence by exhibit (AA)

44. April 28, 2009 received a letter from Defendant with a check enclosed for two hundred sixty two dollars, and seventy eight cents ($262.78) for “payment less than total due”, “repayment plan has defaulted”. As evidence by exhibit (BB)

45. May 1, 2009 Plaintiff’s sent notice of hearing to Defendant’s Attorney. As evidence by exhibit (CC)

46. May 5, 2009 filed Notice of Revocation of Power of Attorney and Revocation of Signature Affidavit, Constructive Notice to Tobey Latham, Steve Utley, or Wendy Alexander, purported substitute trustee for the real property. As evidence by exhibit (DD)

47. May 5, 2009 Defendant allege to have bought back real property at auction. 

48. May 6, 2009 received notice to vacate from Defendant’s Attorney. As evidence by exhibit (EE)

49. May 11, 2009 an audit was conducted by Home Solution Counselors on mortgage papers received by Plaintiffs after closing which confirmed the following: As evidence by exhibit (FF)

(a) TILA Finance Charge Test:  Failed in the amount of $3663.51 (12 CFR § 226.18(d)(1)) 
(b) TILA APR Test:  Failed in the amount of -0.396% (12 CFR § 226.22(a)(2),(4))
(c) TILA Disclosure Date Test:  Failed 12 CFR § 226.17(b), (12 CFR § 226.19(a)) 
(d) RESPA GFE Disclosure Date Test:  Failed (24 CFR §3500.7) 
(e) Loan Origination Fee Test:  Failed in the amount of +$3.45 (HUD Mortgagee Letter 2006-04) 
(f) Tax Service Fee Test:  Failed in the amount of +$77.00 (HUD Mortgagee Letter 2006-04) 
Alerted Items:
(g) Prohibited Fees, Government Code §83.001 
(h) Seller Contribution HUD Handbook 4155.1 REV-5 1-7(A))
(i) Investor Criteria 
(j) TX SB 1581 Legislative Summary
(k) TX SB 1581 Home Loan Legislative Summary
(l) Preparing Legal Documents Alert
50. May 27, 2009 Plaintiffs filed Notice of Lis Pendens on case # D-1-GN-08-  

               002528 As evidence by exhibit (GG)

51. June 6, 2009 Plaintiff received notice of eviction hearing set for June 16, 

              2009. As evidence by exhibit (HH)

        52. June 9, 2009 Plaintiff filed Motion to Extend time to file Responsive Pleading 

   and was granted extension till June 23, 2009. As evidence by exhibit (II).

        53. LAST KNOW ACTION COMMENCED
